


 

The Offeror shall be responsible for incorporating Addendum No. 1 into its copy of the 
Request for Qualifications. 
 
Pre-proposal Meeting for the RFQ – Development Opportunity for Villages of 
Kapolei Northwest Corner 
 
HHFDC Boardroom, 10:00 a.m. 
Thursday, September 5, 2013 
 
HHFDC staff members in attendance: 
 
      Richard Prahler, Development Branch Chief 
 Stan Fujimoto, Development Section Chief 
 Beth Malvestiti, Housing Development Specialist 
 Leonell Domingo, Housing Development Specialist 
 Seiji Ogawa, Housing Development Specialist 
 Ken Takahashi, Project Manager 
 
HHFDC Consultants in attendance: 
 
 Darin Smith, Economic and Planning Systems, Inc. 
 Rebecca Benassini, Economic and Planning Systems, Inc. 
 Alan Fujimori, SSFM 
 Jared Chang, SSFM 
 Mike Packard, SSFM 
 Wendy McClain, SSFM 
 
Attendees: 
 
 Martin Lee, Consultants Plus 
 David Samson, Hawaii Regional Council of Carpenters 
 Sean Newcamp, Hawaii Regional Council of Carpenters 
 Mitch Tynanes, Hawaii Regional Council of Carpenters 
 Lorraine Minatoishi, WRNS Studio 
 Daniel Cody, MW Group 
 Ann Bouslog, Forest City 
 Kent Walther, BlackSand Capital 
 Andrew Furuta, Castle and Cooke Homes Hawaii 
 Seana Ah Kee, Brookfield Homes Hawaii 
  
 Remote Access Attendee: Robert Gibson, PacifiCap, Inc. 
 
The meeting was opened at 10:00 a.m.  A meeting agenda was distributed and is 
attached as Exhibit “A”.  The consultant team gave a PowerPoint presentation 
summarizing the RFQ.  Included in this presentation was a description of the site, 
development context, market overview, zoning and other applicable development 
requirements, infrastructure capacities, transportation and access considerations, 
HHFDC’s key development objectives, RFQ proposal requirements, project schedule and 



 

timeline for selection of a developer team.  The PowerPoint presentation is attached as 
“Exhibit B”.  
 
It was noted that the PBR planning studies and the appraisal report that were included in 
the Appendices are strictly background information.  The planning scenarios are design 
schemes and do not necessarily represent any desired vision of HHFDC.  The appraisal 
does not reflect current land values.  
 
The Kapolei Village Condemnation Agreement, which was also included in the appendix, 
was briefly discussed.  HHFDC is in substantial compliance with the land uses outlined in 
the Master Plan.  For the Northwest Corner, no more than eight acres of neighborhood 
commercial uses will be allowed and Church uses will not be required since a church site 
has already been provided in the central part of the Villages. 
 
To the extent that HHFDC’s mission is to increase the supply of affordable housing, one of 
the objectives for the project is to include a slight majority of the residential units to be 
affordable housing for sale or rent to households earning no more than 140% of the HUD 
area median income.   HHFDC encourages housing for a variety of lower income levels, in 
keeping with the Villages of Kapolei’s mixed-income community.  
  
The question/answer session of the information meeting is summarized as follows: 
 

1. Q:  Within the context of the planning scenarios provided in the Appendix, what 
 kind of plan is HHFDC looking for? 

 
A:    HHFDC is open to whatever designs are proposed, but prefer the 
 proposals to incorporate smart growth and new urbanism approaches, such as 
 mixed land uses, sustainability, connectivity, street grids to reduce congestion, 
 street trees, complete streets, and a neighborhood that promotes walkability 
 within the site and into the surrounding community.  Additional project 
 objectives are provided in Sections 2 and 4.9 of the RFQ. 
 

2. Q: Will the land be available in leasehold or fee?   
 

A: Yes, the land will be made available through long-term ground lease or fee.   
 

3. Q: Are commercial uses limited to only eight acres?   
 

A: The Condemnation Agreement provides that not more than eight acres be set 
 aside for neighborhood commercial uses.  However, additional mixed uses 
 which may include commercial uses may be acceptable, subject to review by 
 the Kapolei Architecture and Design Review Committee.   
 

4. Q: Will residential be the predominant land use? 
 

A: HHFDC’s mission is to increase the supply of workforce and affordable 
 housing, so it is expected that there will be a significant housing component in 
 this project, a slight majority of which should be within the  affordable range. 



 

 
5. Q: If the majority of residential uses are affordable, then can the developer use the 

 process under Chapter 201H, HRS, to exempt all LUO requirements? 
 
 A: The developer will need to apply for specific zoning exemptions which will  
  ultimately be approved by the City Council.  The process does not provide a  
  means for a blanket LUO exemption. 
 

6. Q: Will the road that is owned by HHFDC (i.e., Kealanani Avenue) be dedicated 
 to the City? 

 
 A: Kealanani Avenue and all internal roads within the Villages of Kapolei presently 
  owned by HHFDC are intended to be dedicated to the City. 
 

7. Q:  Will the PowerPoint presentation be available online? 
 
A: Yes, it is attached as “Exhibit B” to this Addendum. 
 

8. Q: Will there be objective criteria used for the selection of a developer in the RFP 
 process? 

 
 A: Yes, the RFP will provide specific criteria that the Evaluation Committee will  
  use to rate and select a developer. 
 

9. Q: If a developer has no audited financial statements then how can they submit 
 their financial qualifications? 

 
 A: HHFDC will accept non-audited financial statements, or other types of financial  
  reports or statements of resources available to the developer that can provide  
  a credible indication of its ability to finance all project costs, such as income  
  statements, balance sheets, tax returns, and lines of credit. All financial   
  information that a developer wants to keep confidential should be marked  
  “confidential” and be readily separable from the proposal. 

 
10. Q: Should the developer state its intent to lease or purchase the property in fee in 

 the proposal submitted in response to the RFQ, or should this be stated in 
 the RFP proposal? 

 
 A: If the developer has a strong sense of its intent during the RFQ process then it  
  can disclose it in the RFQ proposal.  HHFDC is not asking for offers or   
  commitments to a specific land disposition approach at this phase of the  
  solicitation process.  This information will be required in the RFP response. 
 
Additional Clarification 
 
 The RFQ response due date in Section 5, Submittal Deadline and Delivery, on 
 page 40 of the RFQ mistakenly identified October 11 as a Tuesday instead of a 
 Friday.  Therefore, the sentence is hereby amended to read as follows:  



 

 
 “Responses must be received by 2 p.m. on Friday, October 11, 2013 to be 
 considered for selection.”
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